
Minutes 
Environmental Protection Committee 

2 Martin Luther King, Jr. Drive, S. E. 
Suite 1252 East Tower 

Atlanta, GA  30334 
 

May 22, 2012 
 
Attending: 
 
Committee Members Staff Members 
Ray Lambert Chairman Mark Williams 
Steven Woodruff, Vice Chairman Jud Turner 
William Bagwell Todd Holbrook 
Dennis Billew Homer Bryson 
Walter Hudson Spud Woodward 
Mark Mobley Dan Forster 
Jim Walters Becky Kelley 
Philip Watt, Board Chairman, ex-officio Dave Crass 
 Kyle Pearson 
 Steve Friedman 
Board Members Lauren Curry 
Bill Carruth Linda MacGregor 
Joe Hatfield Jim Ussery 
Duncan Johnson Doralyn Kirkland 
Rob Leenern Carolyn Belcher 
Aaron McWhorter Ben Stowers 
Mark Smith Cathy Barnette 
Loyce Turner Amanda Schraner 
Philip Wilheit, Jr. Steven Hatfield 
 Keith Bentley 
 Mary Walker 
Visitors Mary Ann Evans 
Mark Woodall, Sierra Club Hellen Harris 
Debbie Phillips, Georgia Industry Environmental Coalition  
Bryan Tolar, Georgia Agribusiness Council  
Daniel Groce, Georgia Agribusiness Council  
Scott Tanner, Joe Tanner & Associates  
Katie Kirkpatrick, Metro Atlanta Chamber of Commerce  
Ronny Just, Georgia Power Company  
Doug Fulle, Oglethorpe Power Company  
John Eberhart, Georgia Earth Alliance  
Chris Manganiello, Georgia River Network  
 



Minutes – Environmental Protection Committee 
May 22, 2012 
Page 2 
 
 
 The May 22, 2012 meeting of the Environmental Protection Committee was called to order by 
Board Chairman Philip Watt.  Chairman Watt called on Ray Lambert, Chairman of the Environmental 
Protection Committee. 
 
 Mr. Lambert called on Linda MacGregor, Chief, Watershed Protection Branch, for presentation 
of two action items. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that the first item for consideration was on proposed amendments to 
Rules for Water Quality Control, Chapter 391-3-6, pertaining to major spills.  She further stated that 
under the current Rule 391-3-6-.05, a single daily excursion of specific permitted effluent limits for 
Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW) triggers the following: 
 

1. Publication of a notice in the legal organ or the County where the major spill occurs; 
 

2. Establishment of a monitoring program; 
 

3. Notification to downstream public water supplies. 
 
She added that these actions are appropriate for major spills.  She further added that daily excursions 
can warrant these actions when the effluent limits are conventional secondary limits, as a daily 
excursion in those instances may have significant impact. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that for POTWs with very stringent limits, a daily excursion does not 
always warrant the same actions.  She further stated that EPD proposes amendments to Rule 391-3-6-
.05 to modify the definition of “major spill,” by establishing the concentration limit of a major spill. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that an initial public comment period was provided for this proposed 
amendment in October 2010.  She further stated that based on comments received during the first 
public comment period, EPD worked with stakeholders to further refine the proposed Rule and prepare 
it for the February 2012 Board meeting.  She added that following that briefing, the proposed 
amendments were public noticed and a public hearing was held on April 10, 2012. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that there were three attendees to the public hearing and no verbal 
comments were received at that time.  She further stated that one written comment in favor of the 
proposed amendments had been received.  She added that the Georgia Association of Water 
Professionals and the RiverKeepers participated in the revision of the proposed amendments and 
agreed upon the revised language. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that she would like to request that the Committee recommend that the 
Board adopt the Resolution to approve the proposed amendments as presented. 
 
 Discussion ensued. 
 
 



Minutes – Environmental Protection Committee 
May 22, 2012 
Page 3 
 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Woodruff, seconded by Mr. Walters and carried unanimously that 
the Committee recommends that the Board adopt the Resolution to approve the proposed amendments 
to the Rules for Water Quality Control, Chapter 391-3-6, pertaining to major spills, as presented.  
(Resolution attached hereto and made a part hereof) 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that the next item for consideration was for approval of the proposed 
Grant Criteria for Award of 319 Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants FY-2013.  She further stated 
that under Section 319(h) of the Clean Water Act, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) 
awards a Nonpoint Source Implementation Grant each Federal fiscal year to fund eligible projects that 
support the implementation of Georgia’s Nonpoint Source (NPS) Management Program.  She added that 
those grant funds are used for the prevention, control and/or abatement of nonpoint sources of 
pollution. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that historically, approximately $4.5 million is awarded to the State 
annually.  She further stated that due to budget cuts at the Federal level, approximately $3.66 million is 
expected for FY-2013 and future funding cycles.  She added that the majority of these grant funds 
(typically greater than 60%) are distributed to eligible recipients via a competitive process.  She further 
added that the remainder of the funds are either distributed to other state agencies to support ongoing 
nonpoint source efforts, or retained in-house to fund nonpoint source education/outreach programs 
and to support administration of this grant program. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that for FY-2013, the criteria for grant award are more restrictive than in 
the past due to funding cuts at the Federal level.  She further stated that projects that propose to 
develop and/or implement watershed management plans that meet the required guidelines as provided 
by USEPA and Georgia EPD will receive consideration for funding.  She added that these projects will 
typically involve implementing best management practices (BMPs) to address potential and/or identified 
nonpoint sources of pollution.  She further added that these BMPs may include, but are not limited to, a 
focus on agriculture, on-site septic, urban runoff, etc. 
 
 Mrs. MacGregor stated that she would like to request that the Committee recommend that the 
Board approve the proposed Grant Criteria as presented. 
 
 A motion was made by Mr. Woodruff, seconded by Mr. Bagwell and carried unanimously that 
the Committee recommends that the Board approve the proposed Grant Criteria for Award of 319 
Nonpoint Source Implementation Grants FY-2013, as presented.  (Grant Criteria attached hereto and 
made a part hereof) 
 
 Mr. Lambert called on Jud Turner, Director of Environmental Protection Division, for an update 
on items of interest. 
 
 Director Turner gave an update on the designation of 15 counties in the Atlanta area as 
nonattainment areas for air quality that includes Bartow, Cherokee, Clayton, Cobb, Coweta, DeKalb, 
Douglas, Fayette, Forsyth, Fulton, Gwinnett, Henry, Newton, Paulding and Rockdale.   
 



Minutes – Environmental Protection Committee 
May 22, 2012 
Page 4 
 
 
 Director Turner gave an update on Corps of Engineers’ revised operating plan on the ACF 
reservoirs. 
 
 Director Turner gave an update on EPD’s response to Governor Deal’s Executive Order regarding 
each State Agency’s Rules and Regulations.  He stated that he feels this will be an ongoing process. 
 
 Director Turner introduced Keith Bentley as the new Land Protection Branch Chief, who is 
replacing Mark Smith upon his retirement. 
 
 Director Turner introduced Mary Walker, EPD’s Budget Director, who replaced Connie Buck. 
 
 There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned. 


